
 

 
             CENTRAL PIERCE FIRE & RESCUE       

                     BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS MEETING AGENDA        

CPFR Board of Commissioners Meeting Agenda – July 12 2021   Page 1 of 2 

 

 
Date: July 12, 2021 
Place: Zoom Webinar  
Time: 5:00 p.m. 
             
 

1. Call to Order 
 

A. Roll call 
 

 

2. Approval of Agenda  
 

A. Pg 1 /Agenda 
 
 

3. Executive Session under RCW 42.30.110(1)(i) to discuss with legal counsel 
representing the agency matters relating to agency enforcement actions, or to 
discuss with legal counsel representing the agency litigation or potential litigation to 
which the agency, the governing body, or a member acting in an official capacity is, 
or is likely to become, a party, when public knowledge regarding the discussion is 
likely to result in an adverse legal or financial consequence to the agency. 

  
 

4. Public Comment (for items not specifically listed on the Agenda) 
Individuals wishing to comment that are calling in by phone, please press *9 to raise 
your hand.  If connecting by computer, please click the “raise hand” feature. You will 
be notified when it is your turn to speak. Before commenting, please identify yourself 
for the record. You will have three minutes to address the Board.  
 

 

5. Consent Agenda (Single Motion)  
 

A. Excused Absences:  
B. Pg 3 /Minutes: Regular Board Meeting of June 28, 2021  
C. Pg 7 /Approval of:  

 
 
 

Pg 15 / For Informational Purposed Only – The following electronic payments totaling $91,364.85 
are included in Warrants noted above: 

 Accounts Payable EFT numbered 11323 to 11354 - $91,364.85 (Included in A/P Warrant 56286) 
 

 

6. Unfinished Business (Second Reading and Final Action) 
 

 

7. New Business (First Reading) 
 

 

8. Considerations and Requests 
 

A. Pg 23 /Fire Chief Selection – Chair Holm/Suzi Washo 

Accounts Payable Warrants Numbered 56281 to 56311 totaling $ 173,795.80 

GRAND TOTAL $ 173,795.80 

1



 

 
             CENTRAL PIERCE FIRE & RESCUE       

                     BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS MEETING AGENDA        

CPFR Board of Commissioners Meeting Agenda – July 12 2021   Page 2 of 2 

 
 
 

B. Pg 24 /Consultant for Strategic Messaging – Chief Olson 
 

 

C. Pg 29 /Board of Commissioner Meetings Transition – Chief Olson 
 
 

9. Staff, Local, Firefighter's Association and Fire Chief Reports 
 

A. Pg 33 /Human Resources – HRD Washo 
 
 

B. Pg 34 /Training – AC Juarez 
 
 

C. Pg 35 /Field Operations – AC Kent  
i. June Operations/EMS Report 

 
 

D. Pg 38 /EMS – AC Bouchard 
 
 

E. Pg 39 /DC Operations – DC Stueve 
 

 

F. Pg 40 /Fire Chief – Chief Olson 
 
 

10. Correspondence 
 

 

11. Commissioner Comments  
 
 

12. Executive Session under RCW 42.30.110(1)(g) to review the performance of a 
public employee. 

 
 

13. Adjournment 

2



DRAFT – Not Official Until Approved 

Board of Commissioners 
Page 1 of 4                                                                                                   June 28, 2021 Board Meeting Minutes 

CENTRAL PIERCE FIRE & RESCUE 
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

June 28, 2021 
 
Chair Holm called the Regular meeting of the Board of Commissioners for Central Pierce 
Fire & Rescue to order by Zoom meeting at 5:00 p.m. Present were Commissioners 
Coleman, Eckroth, Holm, Stringfellow and Willis, Chief Olson, Deputy Chiefs Karns and 
Stueve, Assistant Chief McKenzie, ITM Kay, CFO Robacker, HRD Washo, and EMS 
Administrative Support Menge, recorder. Ex-Officio Door joined the meeting at 5:25 p.m. 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
Commissioner Stringfellow moved and Commissioner Eckroth seconded to approve the 
agenda as presented. MOTION CARRIED.  
 
PUBLIC COMMENT (FOR ITEMS NOT SPECIFICALLY ON THE AGENDA) 
No public comment.  
 
CONSENT AGENDA (SINGLE MOTION)  

A. Excused Absences:  
B. Minutes: Regular Board Meeting of June 14, 2021    
C. Approval of: 

 

For Informational Purposes Only – The following electronic payments totaling 
$390,943.35 are included in Warrants noted above: 

 Accounts Payable EFT numbered 112620 to 11297 - $295,352.43 (Included 
in A/P Warrant 56232) 

 Accounts Payable EFT numbered 11298 to 11322 - $95,590.93 (Included in 
A/P Warrant 56254) 

 
Commissioner Stringfellow moved and Commissioner Willis seconded to approve the 
Consent Agenda including warrants totaling $477,308.89. MOTION CARRIED.  
 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS (SECOND READING AND FINAL ACTION) 

A. Resolution No. 21-02 Commissioner Remote Board Meeting Participation 
FC Olson reported the Draft Resolution that addresses electronic attendance of 
Board meetings was adjusted on Page 36 under Section 4, added very last 
sentence. Commissioner Stringfellow moved to approve Resolution No. 21-02 and 
Commissioner Willis seconded the motion.  MOTION CARRIED. 
 

NEW BUSINESS (FIRST READING – FOR DISCUSSION AND REVIEW ONLY) 
 Nothing at this time. 
 
CONSIDERATIONS AND REQUESTS  

A. Fire Chief Selection 
Chair Holm reported the Recruitment Brochure was included in the Board Packets.  

Accounts Payable Warrants Numbered 56230 to 56250 totaling $ 350,343.60 
Accounts Payable Warrants Numbered 56251 to 56280 totaling $ 126,965.29 

GRAND TOTAL $ 477,308.89 

3



DRAFT – Not Official Until Approved 

Board of Commissioners 
Page 2 of 4                                                                                                   June 28, 2021 Board Meeting Minutes 

There were some verbiage changes from Commissioner Eckroth.  HRD Washo will 
go over the suggested changes with Heather.  There are 9 locations where the job 
announcement will be posted.  Commissioner Stringfellow moved to approve the 
Fire Chief Selection brochure.  Commissioner Eckroth seconded the motion.  
MOTION CARRIED. 

 
B. Lieutenant Eligibility List 7.1.2021 – 6.30.23  

HRD Washo reported the list was included in the Board packet.  Looks a little 
different than seen in the past for more clarity. Commissioner Stringfellow moved 
and Commissioner Coleman seconded to approve the Lieutenant Eligibility List 
7.1.2021 – 6.30.23.  MOTION CARRIED.   
 

C. Academy 21-1 Hiring Notifications 
HRD Washo reported these are the people we are hiring and are ranked for  
seniority purposes.   
 

D. St. 61 – Evaluation Agreement  
DC Karns reported on architecture service for St. 61 evaluation.  Met with Rice 
Fergus Miller at both sites.  Requested a comprehensive evaluation of each site for 
building a fire station to meet the needs of the District.  Similar in size as Station 72.  
Master Service Agreements covers whatever we engage in with Rice Fergus Miller, 
etc.  As individual projects come up, there will be individual contracts serviced under 
the Master Service Agreement.   Commissioner Stringfellow moved to approve 
architectural services for the St. 61 Evaluation Agreement.  Commissioner Eckroth 
seconded the motion.  MOTION CARRIED. 
 

E. St. 73 – Initial Architectural Agreement  
DC Karns referred to a Master Service Agreement for architectural services for St. 
73.  Commissioner Stringfellow moved to approve the architectural services for St. 
73.  Commissioner Willis seconded the motion.  MOTION CARRIED. 

 
STAFF, LOCAL, FIREFIGHTERS’ ASSOCIATION AND FIRE CHIEF REPORTS (For 
Information Only) 
The following Divisions provided a written report in the packet: 

 
A. Finance – FD Robacker 

Reported everything looks good, 1.7 million on property taxes, where we should be 
for this time of year.  Overtime is still overspent.  Won’t have that on the mid-year 
adjustment, will wait for year end.   
 

B. Information Technology – ITD Kay 
Highlighted a few things – consistently averaging 350-380 resolved tickets on a 
monthly basis and 400-500 calls received.  19 onsite support visits able to resolve 
most things remotely.  4th straight month able to have 100% network connectivity.  
Extremely stable and usable for all users group.  Internet bandwidth consistently 
used at 50% and is working as designed.  Currently have 885 user accounts.  When 
he began we had 600, increase is from new users and new systems supporting 
over all 4 agencies.   

4



DRAFT – Not Official Until Approved 

Board of Commissioners 
Page 3 of 4                                                                                                   June 28, 2021 Board Meeting Minutes 

C. Logistics – AC Stueve 
DC Karns reported AC Stueve is in Pennsylvania doing the final inspection on 
Ladder Trucks.  Engines are in Yakima being finished up.  Will be coming to the 
Board in the future as we have run into a situation due to current condition and 
manufacturing of vehicles in need of replacement.  DC Karns reported on the scope 
of 61, per Commissioner Eckroth’s request.  
 

D. Prevention & Education – AC Overby 
DC Karns stated that Chief Overby is off this week.  Video surveillance footage and 
Puyallup PD able to make an arrest of an arsonist.  2 and 4 are similar as COVID 
restrictions being lifted, public events are opening up, increasing work for booth 
inspections, open flame permits, etc.  Next meeting Shaw will be presenting new 
District website.  Props to DFM Worley on IFSAC practical earlier this month. 

 
E. Health & Safety – AC McKenzie 

FEMA/PC Health Department for mass Vax reimbursement.  Hearing exams have 
begun for employees enrolled in hearing conservation program, about 290 
employees.   

. 
F. DC Administration – DC Karns 

Sta. 72 mediation scheduled for August 31st, if not successful will be moving to trial 
May 2, 2022.   Labor negotiations with 726 had their first meeting which went well.  
House fire today, crews are working hard, DOC has been opened.  Props to the 
Ops Division. 
 
Chair Holm asked if DC Stueve had anything to report.  DC Stueve thanked ACs 
that stepped outside of normal roles to make sure the team succeeds today.  They 
are doing a fantastic job. 
 

G. Fire Chief – Chief Olson  
FC Olson reported working with Attorney Quinn on ballot language with regards to 
renewal.  Apprentice program – JATC, letter being sent and looking at 2022 
implementation time.  Attended the PC Fire Commissioners Association meeting 
and received their endorsement of the E911 office being moved to SS911.  Now 
has support endorsement from PC Fire Chiefs, Commissioners and Police Chiefs.  
PC Fire Marshal wanted to know if pursue a PSAPCA claim with vehicle fire in 
wooded area.  Concentration of homeless in that area.  Had meeting with consultant 
on EMS study – more of GIS context looking at station locations, coverage, etc. 
Analysis of what system should be able to produce and what we are actually able to 
produce. Fitch will be on location the week of July 13th for 2 ½ days to get a feel for 
who and what CP is.  Station 72 is probably the best placed station we have. 

 
CORRESPONDENCE 

A. Employee Recognition 
Chair Holm stated June 10-19 2021 Police Fire Championships games took place.  
FF Boyd was a first place winner. 

 
 

5



DRAFT – Not Official Until Approved 

Board of Commissioners 
Page 4 of 4                                                                                                   June 28, 2021 Board Meeting Minutes 

COMMISSIONER COMMENTS 
Ex-Officio Door stated tomorrow the City Council will have a homeless study session.  
E911 committee will be chairing the sub-committee, doesn’t look like meeting will occur 
before July 6th.  Great job to everyone.  City going to ballot on public safety building in 
November. 
 
Commissioner Stringfellow stated approached by a citizen of Riverside FD regarding 
concerns of service levels, funding, etc.  Individual is intent on making some noise about 
the service levels as far as seeing if they can rally some citizens to annex into the City of 
Puyallup.  Just wanted to make aware of this.  Also, conditions for a perfect storm for the 
4th of July.  Fireworks stand having brisk sales, long holiday weekend, makings of going 
ballistic.  Look out for safety of our personnel.  Hope we get through this weekend the best 
we can.  It was a pleasure  working with DC Karns on a challenge coin.  Really impressed 
with how it turned out.  Only suggestion on the mock up would be to reverse the head/tails 
side.  Hopefully the state will be opening up.   
 
Chair Holm stated still no word or update on-in person meetings being allowed.  FC Olson 
stated he has not heard more.  Mayor Door stated Puyallup City Council is going back to 
open meetings July 7th.  July doing hybrid and then full meetings in August.  Chair Holm 
stated in contact with Attorney Quinn and sure he will give us an update. 
 
Chair Holm stated wished Governor would have looked at the weather and not allowed 
firework stands to open.  Like Commissioner Stringfellow, he is very concerned and 
worried for our citizens and our personnel with the current conditions.   
 
ADJOURNMENT 
There being no further business, Commissioner Stringfellow moved and Commissioner 
Willis seconded to adjourn the meeting. MOTION CARRIED. 
 
The meeting adjourned at 5:55 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
            
MATT HOLM     TANYA ROBACKER 
CHAIR OF THE BOARD   DISTRICT SECRETARY 
 
 
 
      
DENISE MENGE 
RECORDER  

6



7



8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



 
            Board Meeting Agenda Item Summary 

Page 1 of 1 

 

 
 

Agenda Date:  July 12, 2021 

Item Title:   Fire Chief Selection Process 

Attachments:    

Submitted by:  Chief Olson 
 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION BY THE BOARD:  

 

 

 

 

 
 
SUMMARY:     

 
Chair Holm or HRD Washo will provide a verbal update on the process.   
 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT:  

23



 
            Board Meeting Agenda Item Summary 

Page 1 of 1 

 

 
 

Agenda Date:  July 12, 2021 

Item Title:   Consultant for Strategic Messaging 

Attachments:   Lund Faucett Proposal 

Submitted by: Chief Olson 
 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION BY THE BOARD:  

 

 

 

 

 
 
SUMMARY:     
  
 
Motion: Authorizing Fire Chief Olson to sign the agreement with Lund Faucett and 

appropriate $27,000 in the Administration budget for levy messaging.  

 

Attached is a proposal for utilizing a consulting firm to assist CPFR develop strategic 

messaging and a plan to communicate the message about the 2022 FBC and EMS levy 

reauthorization. This will provide Chief Karns expertise and guidance to create and 

implement a plan designed to be implemented in January of 2022. The budget 

appropriation will be added to the mid-year budget amendment if authorized by the 

BOC. 

 

 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT:  
 
$27,000 budget appropriation 

24



    

 

 

411 University Street, Suite 1200 • Seattle WA 98101 

lundfaucett.com • (206) 442-4390 

 

June 3, 2021 

 
TO: Chief Dan Olson 

 Central Pierce Fire & Rescue 

 
FROM: Kris Faucett  

 
RE: Fire Benefit Charge and Emergency Medical Services: Public Education 

 
We are excited about the opportunity to propose public education support to Central Pierce Fire & Rescue (Fire 

District) related to potential April 2022 Fire Benefit Charge (FBC) and Emergency Medical Services (EMS) ballot 
measures.  

 

The Lund Faucett team has more than 25 years of successful experience providing strategic communications, 
facilitation and stakeholder education and engagement to jurisdictions, public entities and businesses including 

successfully supporting Fire Districts and other jurisdictions on ballot measures. We would be honored to support the 
Fire District in this important effort.  

 
We generally partner with Karen Reed Consulting on ballot proposals and have included Karen on our  team for this 

project. Karen has worked with local governments in Western Washington for over 30 years in a variety of 
capacities, for the last 17 years as a consultant focusing on public facilitation and interagency agreements. Together, 

we supported the recent Graham Fire & Rescue Prop 1 | Benefit Charge measure (yes: 68%), we successfully helped 

Snohomish Regional Fire & Rescue and Renton Regional Fire Authority establish RFAs and we are currently working 
with North Whatcom Fire & Rescue as they seek a levy lid lift. 

 
I appreciated the time and insights you shared on our recent call. Based on those learnings, we propose the following 

scope of work and budget for your review and feedback. 
 

About This Effort 
 

The Fire District is planning to ask voters to reauthorize their FBC and renew their EMS on the April 2022 ballot. These 

two funding sources account for almost half of the Fire District’s overall budget and are necessary to current service 
levels for its residents and businesses now and into the future, especially in these uncertain economic times.  

 
It will be important to implement a robust public education effort to ensure the public/voters, key stakeholders and 

media (including ‘citizen journalists’) have accurate information. FBC formulas can be complex and therefore 
understandable, factual messages and materials will be critical, along with ample time to educate residents and 

businesses about the measures.  
The Fire District has effective leadership and skilled communications and community outreach staff with strong 

relationships and established communication tools that are used to regularly educate resident and businesses within 

their service area. You, Chief Olson, plan to retire in Dec. 2022 and want to ensure the ballot measure effort is well 
planned and underway for the incoming Chief.  

 
COVID-19 pandemic constraints, while improving, continue to present unknown and evolving challenges and possibly 

opportunities. A creative, flexible and nimble approach and implementation will be necessary. 
 

Proposed Scope 
 

The Fire District is looking for high-level, strategic communication support. We see our role as “advisory”—supporting 

education planning, message and materials development and identifying potential strategy and tactics as well as 

25

https://www.lundfaucett.com/


  
   

 2 

opportunities (and risks) to effectively communicate facts and information to residents about what the measures would 

cost and provide. The Fire District staff would tactically implement the work.  
 

The following outlines the support we envision providing. We would refine this approach with you and other Fire 

District staff as needed. 
 

Project Kickoff, Regular Communications 
 

We like to start projects with a kickoff meeting to clarify objectives, resources, points of contact, expectations, 
deliverables and timelines and to assess the landscape. We’ll prepare an agenda, facilitate the meeting and capture 

feedback which will inform the overall education plan. We’ll follow the kickoff with regular one-hour check-in calls 
(monthly and then more regularly as we get closer to the election) to ensure we are coordinated, efficient and on 

track throughout the public education effort. 

 
Strategic Advice, Project Management 

 
Throughout the project our team will provide strategic advice regarding overall approach and when specific issues 

arise. Our work will include preparing and leveraging Fire District staff, community leaders and resources and 
providing expertise and support strategically and efficiently. 

 
Supporting a Strong Team 

 
To successfully educate and communicate about this effort, the Fire District will need a team of experts that works 
well together. As you know, our team includes the talents of Lund Faucett and Karen Reed Consulting. And your team 

is going to need some other key players. 

• It will be important to bring the Fire District’s attorney into the effort early and ensure his review of 

messages, materials, etc. throughout. We’ll defer to the attorney’s expertise on the PDC and elections so we 
are sure to meet all requirements and deadlines. 

• Fire District finance staff will also be critical in order to confirm specific details about the FBC structure and 
impacts. 

• Key Fire District communications and outreach staff with strong local community expertise will also play a 

central role in this effort. Local nuances matter, and we need to rely on you for this component.  
 

Discovery, Review 
 

We’ll start our work with some initial discovery and analysis. We’ll utilize the kickoff to learn more about relevant 
issues, stakeholders, etc. We’d also like to talk with a few individuals (up to 3) with strong community knowledge to 

gain insights into current public and/or stakeholder awareness and sentiment which will help guide communications 
and messaging. We’ll also complete an online, media, materials, etc. scan. The review and the discussions will provide 

a high-level landscape assessment, including and lessons learned from previous efforts. 

 
Planning, Messages, Materials 

 
After the initial assessment, we’ll work with Fire District staff to develop a high-level public information plan with 

overall strategy, key messages, suggested tactics and timelines. We’ll also support message development and advise 
and support basic materials development and deployment through Fire District resources, including: 

• Website content  

• FAQ  

• Mailer (including design but not production/mailing) 

26



  
   

 3 

• Information / palm card  

• PowerPoint (for Speakers’ Bureau and other presentations) 

• Speaking points 

• Newsletter articles (up to 3) 
  

We will help arm the Fire District with facts, speaking points and informational materials to educate the public about 

the measure. Production, printing and distribution of materials and speaking/staffing of presentation and events 
would be completed by Fire District staff. 

 
Education, Engagement 

 
The education and engagement phase will be driven by the public information plan. This budget assumes that the Fire 

District will implement the education effort, with advising and light support from our team, including helping identify 
unforeseen opportunities and risks and refining messages and materials. 

 

Creative approaches, including online efforts will be likely, especially given the uncertain and ever evolving COVID-
19 situation. 

 
We were pleased to understand from our discussion that the Fire District has established traditional and social media 

capabilities and channels. Of course, providing content that can be easily shared via social media will also be 
important. This budget assumes our team will play mostly an advisory role, help with sharable social media and 

traditional media content, but minimal tactical support.  
 

Reporting 

 
We recommend the Fire District pull together a final report that summarizes efforts, outcomes, lessons learned and 

recommendations for future efforts should that be desired. Fire District staff will lead that effort. 
 

Budget Estimate 
 

We bill clients for work in progress monthly. We record time and charge for staff time in 15-minute increments using 
the following public agency rate (reduced for this project) schedule: 

 

Partners / Karen Reed  $200.00 
Associates   $110.00 

Support staff   $60.00 
 

Below are budget estimates for the various items addressed in the scope of work. As we discussed, we’ve provided: 

• Estimates by task to allow for an à la carte approach; 

• A range the message/materials task which will vary depending on support needs; and   

• An estimate for designing the mailer. 

 
We would bill against these estimates, so if we didn’t complete a task, we of course, wouldn’t bill for it, or if 

something took less time than expected, there would be money left in the budget.  

 
We’ve assumed support for approximately 10 months (July 2021 – April 2022). We see work in July – December 

focused on planning, preparation and materials development, with more public education starting early in 2022. 
 

 
 

27



  
   

 4 

Task Budget estimate 

Strategic advice, project kickoff, regular meetings (assumes 10 one-hour monthly 
coordinating calls) and email coordination and project management 

$8,700 

Discovery/review (includes up to 3 stakeholder interviews and landscape scan  $2,000  

Communications plan $1,400 

Messages, materials (website content (does not include design/development), FAQ, 

mailer (does not include printing, mailing, postage), PowerPoint presentation and 
speaking points, business/palm cards (does not include production), newsletter 

articles (3) 

$7,200 

Design of mailer  $3,000  

Education, engagement (strategic advice; does not include staffing events, etc.) $4,000 

Total estimate $26,300 

 

Thank you again for the opportunity to support Central Pierce Fire & Rescue in this important endeavor. We look 
forward to discussing this proposal further with you. 

 

 

28



 
            Board Meeting Agenda Item Summary 

Page 1 of 1 

 

 
 

Agenda Date:  July 12, 2021 

Item Title:   BOC Meetings Transition 

Attachments:   Snure Email, L& I COVID update 6/30/21 

Submitted by:  Chief Olson 
 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION BY THE BOARD:  

 

 

 

 

 
 
SUMMARY:     

 
Board of Fire Commissioners: 

 

Attached is a notice from Brian Snure outlining the options for holding BOC meetings. It 

looks like you can choose almost any option or hybrid to include: 

1. Going back to physical public attendance at meetings following the guidance 
provided. 

2. Continue with the remote meetings with public access on zoom provided. 
3. Going back to physical public attendance with some BOC members present and 

others remote. 
 

This is being brought up for discussion by the BOC to direct staff on which direction it 

prefers. 

 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT:  

29



1

Dianne Porter

From: Daniel Olson
Sent: Tuesday, July 6, 2021 12:24 PM
To: Dianne Porter
Subject: FW: Open Public Meeting Guidance
Attachments: F414-164-000.pdf; ATT00001.htm

Please add to the AIS that follows 
 

From: Brian Snure <brian@snurelaw.com>  
Sent: Wednesday, June 30, 2021 8:16 AM 
To: Brian Snure <Brian@snurelaw.com> 
Cc: Ferris, Roger (WFCA) <rogerf@wfca.wa.gov> 
Subject: Open Public Meeting Guidance 

 
You are receiving this email as you are a recent or current client of this firm.  
 
In Person Meetings. 
 
Effective today June 30, 2021 you may return to operating your in person public meetings without regard to 
capacity limitations.  The following guidance was issued by the Governor’s office: 
 

 Vaccine verification/negative testing: Recommended but not required for large indoor and outdoor 
events 

 Physical distancing: No requirements 
 Facial coverings: Not required for vaccinated individuals, unless required by individual business 

Updated L&I requirements for your  employees, volunteers and commissioners are attached.  The L&I 
guidelines detail options for fully vaccinated workers to go without a mask, methods for verification of worker 
vaccination status, choices workers have to continue to mask up and other updated guidance to prevent the 
spread of COVID-19 on the job and help employers meet their obligations to provide a safe and healthy 
workplace. 

 
Virtual Meetings. 
 
The lifting of the restrictions was not, as of this morning, accompanied by a lifting of the State of Emergency or 
a modification of Proclamation 20.28-15. Accordingly, although you may resume your pre-pandemic meeting 
practices, subject to the L&I safe workplace rules, you are still required to provide a virtual meeting option.   
 
I will update this email at such time as Proclamation 20.28 is modified or rescinded. 
 
 

30



Division of Occupational Safety and Health
www.Lni.wa.gov/safety-health  1-800-423-7233

L&I Requirements and Guidance 
for Preventing COVID-19
This information is current as of June 30, 2021.

Businesses in Washington state are now able to open 
at full capacity and have fewer requirements to 
follow to protect employees from COVID-19.

Requirements for Employers
	� Ensure unvaccinated employees wear a mask 
while working indoors.

	� Verify vaccination status before lifting 
employee mask requirements and be able to 
show the process used for verification.

	� Keep employees with possible or confirmed 
cases of COVID-19 from working 
around others.

	� Provide handwashing facilities and supplies.

	� Train employees to recognize and respond to 
workplace hazards, including COVID-19.

	� Assess recognized hazards, including 
COVID-19, as part of the ongoing requirement 
to provide a safe and healthful workplace and, 
where appropriate, take additional steps to 
protect unvaccinated employees.

	� Notify employees in writing within one 
business day if someone they had close contact 
with tests positive for COVID-19 (without 
disclosing the person’s identity).*

	� Report COVID-19 outbreaks of 10 or more 
employees at workplaces or worksites 
with more than 50 employees to L&I 
within 24 hours.*

Industries where masks or respirators 
are still required for all workers

	� Health care (long-term care, doctor’s offices, hospitals)

	� Public transportation (aircraft, train, buses, road vehicles)

	� K-12 schools, childcare facilities and day camps in 
locations where children are present or expected 
to be present

	� Correctional facilities

	� Homeless shelters

Masks and Face Coverings
	� Employers must provide cloth face coverings 
or a more protective mask to employees, free of 
charge, when use of a mask is required.

	� Although fully vaccinated employees are no 
longer required to wear a face covering, an 
employer may still require or encourage mask use.

	� Employees have the right to wear a mask or other 
protective equipment, regardless of their vaccination 
status, as long as it doesn’t create safety issues.

Verifying Worker Vaccination Status
Employers must be able to show the process used to 
verify employee vaccination status. However, they 
do not need to keep an actual copy of the employee’s 
vaccination records.

*	Required by the Health Emergency Labor Standards Act (HELSA) passed by the legislature earlier this year. See www.Lni.wa.gov/go/F417-291-000.

31

http://www.Lni.wa.gov/safety-health
http://www.Lni.wa.gov/go/F417-291-000


Acceptable types of verification include:

	� Vaccine card or photo of vaccine card.

	� Documentation from a health care provider.

	� State immunization information system record.

	� A hard copy or electronically signed 
self-attestation from the employee.

When implementing a verification process, employers 
should consider other laws that may apply.

Guidance for Protecting Unvaccinated Workers
The following information is advisory and intended to 
help employers provide a safe and healthy workplace. 
However, there may be specific requirements that must 
be followed for the industries listed in the box above.

	� A COVID-19 vaccine is the best tool to prevent 
the spread of the virus. Employers should 
support and encourage workers to get vaccinated.

	� Other ways to reduce the risk of 
COVID-19 transmission for unvaccinated 
employees include:

	- Continuing distancing between 
unvaccinated employees, especially in 
indoor areas with poor ventilation or while 
working with the public.

	- Maximizing fresh air and air filtration 
settings on HVAC systems, and adding 
filtration in areas with poor ventilation.

	- Providing a mask that is more protective 
than a cloth face covering for unvaccinated 
workers who are generally not able to 
maintain distance from other unvaccinated 
workers or the public. Examples could 
include surgical masks or KN95s.

	- Providing a mask to unvaccinated workers 
in outdoor crowded settings is strongly 
encouraged (sporting events, fairs, parades, 
concerts, and similar settings).

Reasonable Accommodation 
and Discrimination
Employers must ensure workplaces remain safe 
and healthy for all, including employees with 
medical issues or disabilities (see the Americans 
with Disability Act, or ADA, at www.eeoc.gov/laws/
guidance/fact-sheet-disability-discrimination).

Additionally, HELSA protects high-risk employees 
from being discharged, permanently replaced, or 
discriminated against in the workplace for seeking 
accommodation from exposure to an infectious or 
contagious disease during a public health emergency. 
HELSA is administered by L&I and currently applies 
to accommodations related to COVID-19.

Resources
L&I’s COVID-19 guidance includes resources 
from the Centers for Disease Control (CDC), 
Department of Health (DOH) and U.S. 
Occupational Safety and Health Administration: 
www.Lni.wa.gov/CovidSafety.

DOH Secretary of Health Order: 
www.doh.wa.gov/Portals/1/Documents/1600/
coronavirus/Secretary_of_Health_Order_20-03_
Statewide_Face_Coverings.pdf

Upon request, foreign language support and formats for persons 
with disabilities are available. Call 1-800-547-8367. TDD users, 
call 711. L&I is an equal opportunity employer.

PUBLICATION F414-164-000 [06-2021]

32

http://www.eeoc.gov/laws/guidance/fact-sheet-disability-discrimination
http://www.eeoc.gov/laws/guidance/fact-sheet-disability-discrimination
http://www.Lni.wa.gov/CovidSafety
http://www.doh.wa.gov/Portals/1/Documents/1600/coronavirus/Secretary_of_Health_Order_20-03_Statewide_Face_Coverings.pdf
http://www.doh.wa.gov/Portals/1/Documents/1600/coronavirus/Secretary_of_Health_Order_20-03_Statewide_Face_Coverings.pdf
http://www.doh.wa.gov/Portals/1/Documents/1600/coronavirus/Secretary_of_Health_Order_20-03_Statewide_Face_Coverings.pdf


 
            Board Meeting Agenda Item Summary 

Page 1 of 1 

 

 
 
 

Agenda Date    July 12, 2021 

Item Title:    Human Resources Division Report 

Attachments:     

Submitted by:   Suzi Washo 
 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION BY THE BOARD:  

First reading  
Second reading  
Motion to approve  
For information only  
Other:  

 
SUMMARY:     
 
 
Recruitment 

 Academy began on Tuesday, July 6th for Academy 21-1 with a total of 14 new recruits 
 Fire Chief – the recruitment opened on June 29th and will run through July 31st 
 Payroll Analyst – our long time Analyst, Mindy Roberts, is leaving us later in July for a 

new opportunity so we will be running a recruitment for that position 
 Network Administrator – we are finishing up the finalization of the job description and 

exam plan with the Local and will be running a recruitment soon for that position 
 IT Director – Director Kay has put in his retirement notice (as of August 31st) and I will be 

working with the Chief on the next steps in refilling that position 
 Mechanic – it has been five (5) years since we last ran a recruitment for Mechanic and 

will be doing a process for that this fall 
 Currently have proposals to the Local for a few other internal processes (Lead Mechanic, 

Captain – Logistics, etc.) that will be scheduled this fall 
 
Negotiations 

 Local 726 
o We had our first session in June, and have six (6) more dates scheduled through 

early December 
 
 

33



 
            Board Meeting Agenda Item Summary 

Page 1 of 1 

 

 

 
 

Agenda Date:  07‐12‐2021 

Item Title:  Division Update – Training 

Attachments:  N/A 

Submitted by: AC Juarez 
 

 

RECOMMENDED ACTION BY THE BOARD:   

First reading  
Second reading

 
Motion to approve

 
For information only

 
Other:

   
 

SUMMARY:     

 

1. 2021‐1 recruit academy began on July 6th, 14 recruits.  

2. Pro Board re‐accreditation is in process, anticipate having all NFPA levels of accreditation 

completed in next few months. 

3. Ladder truck Train the Trainer in development phase.  

4. Recruit class 18‐1 has just successfully completed 1st class firefighter requirements. 

Congrats class 18‐1. 

5. Graham Fire and Central Pierce continue to train together, all of the companies have said 

nothing but good things and this training has been way overdue.  

 

FINANCIAL IMPACT:  

 

N/A 

34



 
            Board Meeting Agenda Item Summary 

Page 1 of 1 

 

 

 
 

Agenda Date: 07/12/2021 

Item Title:  Division Update – Field Operations 

Attachments:  Monthly Ops Report Attached 

Submitted by: R. Kent 
 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION BY THE BOARD:  

First reading  
Second reading  
Motion to approve  
For information only  
Other:  

 
SUMMARY:     
 
1. 4th of July Report: 

a. Operations was on heightened readiness: 
i. DOC Activated with extra Staffing called back in July 3 & 4.   

b. Please see the attached report. 
 

2. Policy 444 Establishing Strategy and Tactical Priorities – Structure Fires is complete and 
ready for training. 
a. This functionally adopts, by policy, the Blue Card system as our operational system. 
 

3. Policy 445 Establishing Strategy and Tactical Priorities – Scenes of Violence is complete 
and ready for training. 

 
4. Planning for a fully-open Washington State Fair in September has begun. 

 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
N/A 

35



Operations/EMS 
June 2021 

 

3,035 Incidents 
 
2021 Year-to-Date Calls:  15,664 
2020 Year-to-Date Calls:   14,392 
     Net increase (8.8%)          1,272 

 

Monthly Calls in Station Area 
 

*unable to provide Station Area call volumes for this reporting period due to a reporting software error 
with the Station field that is in the process of being resolved 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Month-to-Month Comparison 

 

Fire
73, 2%

EMS/Rescue
2,172, 72%

Hazardous 
Condition

26, 1%

Service 
Call 175, 

6%

Good Intent
378, 12%

Other
211, 7%

2
,6

2
9

2
,4

6
1

2
,4

7
5

2
,1

6
2

2
,3

0
4

2
,3

6
1 2
,7

5
9

2
,6

6
2

2
,7

5
7

2
,3

6
3

2
,4

3
7

2
,2

7
52
,6

0
9

 

2
,2

1
8

 

2
,5

4
0

 

2
,6

5
2

 

2
,6

0
3

 

3
,0

3
5

 

0

500

1,000

1,500

2,000

2,500

3,000

3,500

4,000

Jan Feb Mar Apr May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec

2020

2021

Mutual/Auto Aid Apparatus Response 
 
*unable to provide MA by District at this time, due to new 
incident reporting platform 
 

36



Operations/EMS 
June 2021 

 

 
Structure Fires – 111 Call Type 

 

 
Fire Loss – 111 Call Type 

 
 

EMS Calls/Transports 

 

8
9

6

11

5
7

8
10

8
7

8
9

14

6

12
11

10
9

0

5

10

15

20

25

Jan Feb Mar Apr May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec

2020

2021

$
3
6
0
,9

1
6
 

$
1
7
7
,9

0
0
 

$
6
7
,4

8
6
 

$
1
,2

4
3
,7

0
0
 

$
1
1
4
,5

0
0
 

$
2
6
8
,0

3
6
 

$
4
,3

0
5
,1

6
9
 

$
8
4
2
,6

5
2
 

$
2
,7

5
8
,5

8
3
 

$
6
2
4
,0

5
8
 

$
1
5
6
,6

7
0
 

$
4
4
5
,9

0
8
 

$
6
4
7
,6

3
8
 

$
2
5
0
,2

4
7
 

$
2
,3

5
2
,5

4
1
 

$
3
6
7
,6

1
5
 

$
9
4
3
,3

6
0
 

$
1
,4

6
1
,5

1
3
 

 $-

 $500,000

 $1,000,000

 $1,500,000

 $2,000,000

 $2,500,000

 $3,000,000

 $3,500,000

 $4,000,000

 $4,500,000

 $5,000,000

Jan Feb Mar Apr May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec

2020

2021

37



 
            Board Meeting Agenda Item Summary 

Page 1 of 1 

 

 

 
 

Agenda Date: 07/12/2021 

Item Title: Division Update - EMS 

Attachments: N/A 

Submitted by: J. Bouchard 
 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION BY THE BOARD:  

First reading  
Second reading  
Motion to approve  
For information only  
Other:  

 
SUMMARY:   
 
1. All eligible CPFR personnel successfully recertified through Pierce County EMS and 

Department of Health.  This was a great collaboration with the Training Division and the 
EMS Division.  It involved a new OTEP platform, a new submittal process, and a new 
Paramedic Airway Management class.  Kudos to Jackie Wood and Captain Fox for a job 
well done! 

 
2. Paramedic Airway Management classes:  8 total classes including the full class, refresher 

class and train the trainer was accomplished in just over a month which allowed our 
providers to recertify. 

 
3. Igel endorsements are continuing to get approved through the Department of Health.  We 

currently have 51 EMT’s who are endorsed to use these airways. 
 

4. Crisis Protocols:  The EMS Division has worked closely with PCEMS, DOH, our EMS 
partnering agencies, and hospital management to craft Crisis Protocols to help alleviate the 
over-saturation of local hospitals due to heat and/or trauma.   

 

  FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
N/A 
 

38



 
            Board Meeting Agenda Item Summary 

Page 1 of 1 

 

 

 
 

Agenda Date: 07/12/2021 

Item Title:  Division Update – Operations Section 

Attachments:  N/A 

Submitted by E. Stueve 
 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION BY THE BOARD:  

First reading  
Second reading  
Motion to approve  
For information only  
Other:  

 
SUMMARY:     
 
1. Central Pierce hosted a presentation and project planning session for Intterra (Operations 

Awareness & Analytics Software) including Tacoma Fire Department, East Pierce Fire & 
Rescue, Graham Fire & Rescue, Gig Harbor Fire & Medic One, West Pierce Fire & Rescue 
and Key Peninsula Fire. 
a. The group desires a cooperative ILA termed at three to five years covering both the 

Operations & Analytics platform. 
 

FINANCIAL IMPACT:  
 
N/A 

39



 
            Board Meeting Agenda Item Summary 

Page 1 of 2 

 

 
 

Agenda Date:  July 12, 2021 

Item Title:   Fire Chief’s Report 

Attachments:   Pierce County Fire Chief’s statement, Ladder Truck pictures 

Submitted by:  Chief Olson 
 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION BY THE BOARD:  

 

 

 

 

 
 
SUMMARY:     
  

Effectively Respond, Continuously Improve, Compassionately Serve 

 

Board of Fire Commissioners: 

 

1. Benefit Charge:  
a. Consultant: Chief Karns and I met with the consulting firm and are 

recommending approval of a contract to utilize their services to assist us in 
a clear communication and plan for the FBC and EMS renewal. Attorney 
Quinn has worked with this firm a couple of times and highly recommends 
them.  

b. Attorney Quinn has reviewed the law on utilizing the renewal or 
reauthorize language regarding the 10 year FBC option. He said the 
reauthorization or similar language be utilized in his view of the law. I will 
ask him to attend your next meeting to explain.  
 

2. IT Consortium: Jay Kay has given notice to retire at the end of August. We are 
reviewing the job description and preparing a recruitment. I will be working with 
the Consortium Chiefs on the selection.  

 

3. E911 Funding: I have been meeting with County Council members discussing 
and hopefully creating an understanding of the E911 tax, office, and who should 
represent 911 at the local and state level. We continue to support the efforts 
occurring to move the E911 office and funding under SS911. The subcommittee 
has been selected and meeting schedules are beginning to take shape for this 
effort. Mayor Door is the Chair of the committee with the task to analyze and 
make a recommendation for the SS911 Board of Directors to consider. Attached 
you will find the County Fire Chief’s position on this matter. 

40



 
            Board Meeting Agenda Item Summary 

Page 2 of 2 

 

 

 

4. Fire Code Adoption: Last Tuesday, the Fire Code proposal was adopted by the 
Pierce County Council. I am so pleased with the end result and safety these 
provisions will provide long after all of us have completed our service.  
 

5. SEPA Appeal: South Sunrise- With the Fire Code passing, we will be contacting 
the appellant to see if we can end this process. 

 

6. EMS Study: Fitch will be here next week for 3 days. This will be one of the last 
items prior to them writing and finalizing their recommendations. 

 

7. Updated Website: Because of scheduling and vacation challenges, we are 
planning to have the website review at the second BOC meeting in July. 
 

8. Recruit Academy 2021-1: We have conducted the orientation and they have 
begun their academy this week. It looks like a great group of 14 people to serve 
our citizens today and especially the future. 
 

9. Meeting with Chief Green TFD: I had a meeting this week with Chief Green. We 
discussed possible ways we could work closer together post COVID. Items 
discussed included Joint Purchasing the Data Analytic; Haz-Mat and Tech 
Rescue Team coordination; EMS only response to life/disability calls along the 
border when primary unit is unavailable. We also discussed BLS unit staffing and 
what TFD is doing as they take over BLS transport. 

 

10. COVID-19: 
a. Emergency Declaration- No changes from previous meeting.  The 

authority has not been exercised during the previous two-week period. I 

will continue to report any uses of the declarations authority. 

b. Governor Proclamation: As of July 1st, many of the restrictions have been 

revoked. The main items for the BOC now is the question of future 

meeting processes.  
 

11. Ladder Trucks: We are getting close to delivery of our two new ladder trucks. 

Picture attached.  

 
 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT:  

41



 
 

 

 

PIERCE COUNTY FIRE 

CHIEFS ASSOCIATION 
P.O. Box 940, Spanaway, WA  98387 

 
 

 

9-1-1 Coordination and Funding 

911 Program Office 

Prior to SS911, Pierce County had multiple public safety answering points (PSAPs) within the county, 

some of which were very small.   With numerous PSAPs operating in the county, there was a compelling 

need for 911 coordination and the logical place to focus that effort was within Pierce County 

government. Currently, the Pierce County 911 Program Office is a function of DEM.  Some of the major 

responsibilities of the 911 Program Office are to ensure reliable access to 911, maintain 911 systems, 

provide for system security, and provide public education.  These are all functions South Sound 911 does 

as well.  In other counties with a single PSAP such as Spokane, Kitsap and Thurston Counties, the 

responsibilities of the 911 Program Office are housed within the PSAP.  Maintaining the 911 Program 

Office separate and apart from South Sound 911 creates operational redundancies and inefficiencies as 

well as confusion as to how and where 911 issues should be addressed.   

PCFCA position: The duties and responsibilities of the 911 Program Office should be transferred to 

South Sound 911.  By moving the 911 Program Office into SS911, redundancies of service will be 

eliminated and greater operational efficiencies will be attained.  Furthermore, 911 issues at the state 

and federal level would be put forward by a single voice representing all Pierce County first responders. 

70 Cent 911 Tax 

There are two main taxing revenues supporting 911 communication in Pierce County, 1/10% sales tax 

and a 70 cent tax per phone line comprised of a 50 cent excise tax and a 20 cent E911 tax.  The 1/10% 

tax is collected by Pierce County and remitted to South Sound 911. It can be used for a broad spectrum 

of communication purposes, such as infrastructure, radios, salaries, 911 equipment, etc.  The 70 cent 

911 tax is also collected by Pierce County, but only a portion of the revenues are remitted to South 

Sound 911.  Spending this tax is much more restrictive than the 1/10%.  Per RCW, the 70 cent 911 tax 

can only be used to pay for the emergency communications system.   

In 2020, the 70 cent 911 tax generated $8,929,611.  Of that, South Sound 911 received $4,772,080, or 

approximately 53%. The remaining funds were retained by Pierce County and utilized for a variety of 

expenses such as capital projects, CCN user fees, and the E-911 Program Office.  

PCFCA position: South Sound 911 should receive all of the revenues generated from the 70 cent 911 

tax.  By directing the entire 70 cent tax to South Sound 911, funding will be improved to support 911 

operations and the overall financial burden placed on first responder agencies throughout Pierce County 

will be substantially reduced. 

Moving the responsibilities or the 911 Program Office and providing South Sound 911 with the entire 70 

cent 911 tax is a progressive step forward in the ongoing efforts to create a unified, modern, cost 

effective 911 communications system within Pierce County.   

 

42



CPFR Ladder Truck Progress 
 

 
 

 
 

 

43


	1 - 2021-07-12 Board Agenda DRAFT
	5B - 2021-06-28 Board Meeting Minutes DRAFT
	5C - 2021_07_12 Warrant Approval
	8A - Fire Chief Selection Process
	8B1 - AIS - Consult
	8B2 - LundFaucett_Central Pierce proposal_060221
	The Fire District has effective leadership and skilled communications and community outreach staff with strong relationships and established communication tools that are used to regularly educate resident and businesses within their service area. You,...
	COVID-19 pandemic constraints, while improving, continue to present unknown and evolving challenges and possibly opportunities. A creative, flexible and nimble approach and implementation will be necessary.
	Proposed Scope
	Project Kickoff, Regular Communications
	Strategic Advice, Project Management
	Planning, Messages, Materials
	Education, Engagement
	Reporting

	Budget Estimate

	8C1 - AIS - Meetings
	8C2 - Meetings-Snure email
	8C3 - LNI Attach
	9A - 7.12 HR
	9B - Training AIS 07-12-2021
	9C1 - Operations AIS 7-12-2021
	9C2 - 06 - June 2021
	9D - EMS AIS 07-12-21
	9E - DC Ops AIS 07.12
	9E1 - AIS - Chief
	9E2 - 9-1-1 Coordination and Funding
	9E3 - KME pics



